AGENDA
STONEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
Regular and Organizational Meeting
December 2, 2025 - 6:00 PM
Council Chambers at 101 Smith St.

CALLTO ORDER — MAYOR GALVAN
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & INVOCATION
APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 2, 2025 AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Regular Meeting — November 6, 2025
2. Special Meeting — November 13, 2025

OLD BUSINESS
1. Consideration of Amendment to R-2025-13 Resolution Approving Financing for the Purchase of
Two Police Vehicles Through Fidelity Bank and Authorizing Necessary Budget Amendments

RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING COUNCILMAN, JOHNNY FARMER

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
1. The Honorable Superior Court Judge for Rockingham County, Jason Ramey, will administer the
Oaths of Office to newly elected officials Daisy Smith, Jessica Smith, and Curtis Bennett.

BRIEF RECESS

2. Elect Mayor Pro Tem
3. Resolution R-2025-14 Appointing a Delegate to the Piedmont Triad Regional Council Board
4. Adopt 2026 Town Council Meeting Schedule

NEW BUSINESS

1. Adopt 2026 Town of Stoneville Holiday Schedule
2. Adopt 2026 Water Billing Calendar

PUBLIC COMMENTS

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT

NEXT COUNCIL MEETING - JANUARY 6, 2026, AT 6:00 PM
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CLOSING REMARKS — MAYOR GALVAN

ADJOURNMENT



Stoneville Town Council
Regular Meeting Minutes
November 6, 2025
6:00 PM — Council Chambers

Regular Meeting

Present were Mayor Kathy Stanley-Galvan, Council members Johnny Farmer, Curt Bennett, Lee
Shelton, Henry Thornton and Daisy Smith. Also present were Town Administrator Michael
Sands, Finance Officer Mary Ann Greer, Town Clerk Deleia Hutcherson, Police Chief Rebecca
Dixon, Public Works Director Byron Curry, Fire Chief Joel Freeman and Town Attorney Eugene
Russell. :

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, and Invocation: MayorkGa‘i\i/a\r.\ welcomed the assembly and
called the meeting to order after the Pledge of Allegia’nce and I"'n'vio‘cation at 6:00 p.m.

Agenda: Mayor Galvan asked for a motion to: approve the November 6, 2025 agenda with the
following amendment: Add item 5 under new busmess - Con5|derat|on of Ordmance 0-2025-
05 Temporary Road Closure for Annual Christmas Parade Councdman Thornton made a
motion to approve the amended November 6, 2025 agenda Seconded by Councilman Farmer.
Motion carried unanimously. NS

Minutes: Councdwoman Smlth made a motlon to approve the regular meeting minutes from

Counulman Bennett; Motion carrled unanlmously

PUBLIC HEARING : 253 ~

Consideration of a rezonmg request from appllcant Patrick Smith, to rezone a parcel
identified as Tax Pin 794900018175 (1.6 AC +/-) from Mixed Zoning (Commercial/Residential
Agrlculture) to Residential Suburban Councilman Shelton made a motion to enter into Public
Hearing. Seconded by Councilman Thornton Motion carried unanimously. The applicant was
not present; therefore, planning staff explalned that the request involved rezoning land that
would be sold for the constructlon of approxnmately three stick-built homes on roughly 0.5-acre
lots. No individuals were S|gned up for public comment. A motion to exit the public hearing was
made by Councilman Thﬁornton. ;Seconded by Councilman Bennett. Motion carried
unanimously. h

Following discussion clarifying the property was within the Town’s ETJ, Councilman Farmer
made a motion to approve the rezoning based on the Findings of Fact and favorable
recommendation provided by the Planning Board and the Reasonableness and Consistency
Statement as presented by staff. Seconded by Councilman Shelton. Motion carried
unanimously with a 5-0 vote. Copy incorporated into minutes.

Public Comments: Mr. Gary Purgason of Madison, NC spoke on behalf of Good Stewards of
Rockingham and requested that the Council adopt a resolution opposing proposed natural gas
pipelines through the county, citing environmental and public safety concerns.



Regular Meeting Minutes November 6, 2025 Page 2

Mr. Mack Rierson of Oak Street in Stoneville, NC addressed the Council regarding concerns
about the conduct of a council member, alleging misuse of public office and personal
harassment, and requested a formal review of the matter.

Old Business: None

NEW BUSINESS

Consideration for the appointment of Mr. Maurice Price to the Planning Board/Board of
Adjustment — The Council considered the appointment of Mr. Maurice Price, an ETJ resident, to
the Planning Board and Board of Adjustment to fill an outside‘-member vacancy. Staff briefly
reviewed the statutory requirements for proportional representation on both boards, noting
ongoing needs for additional ET) members. Councilmany Farmer made a motion to appoint Mr.
Price as an ETJ member of the Planning Board/Board of Adjustment. Councilwoman Smith
seconded. Motion carried unanimously. Copy inéorporated into minutes.

Consideration of Code of Ethics and Conduct Pdllcy for Governing Board = The Council
reviewed the proposed Governing Board Code of Ethics and.Code of Conduct Policy. The Town
Administrator stated it was an updated version allgned W|th state law and UNC School of
Government guidance. Councilman Farmer made a motlon to approve the policy as presented
by staff. Councilwoman Smith seconded Motlon carrled unanimously. Copy incorporated into
minutes. : ‘

Consideration of Employee Chrlstmas Bonuses - The COUnCIl consrdered the annual employee
Christmas bonuses, whlch have tradltlonally been awarded for over a decade. Staff
recommended a 5500 bonus for fuII time employees and a $250 bonus for part-time
employees Staff reported the total cost as apprommately $8,250, which had already been
included.in the FY 2025—2026 budget Counalman Farmer made a motion to approve the
Chrlstmas bonuses as presented by staff Councilwoman Smith seconded. Motion carried
unammously : :

Con5|derat|on of Budget Amendment 110625 - The Council proceeded to review Budget
Amendment 110625, reflecting;the receipt of a $24,500 grant awarded to the Fire Department
through a Phil Berg'er-sponsored state program. The amendment allocated the revenue and
expenditure for updated_pag‘e‘rs and radios. Councilman Farmer made a motion to approve the
budget amendment. Seconded by Councilman Thornton. Motion carried unanimously. Copy
incorporated into minutes.

Consideration of Ordinance 0-2025-05 Temporary Road Closure for Annual Christmas Parade-
The Town Administrator informed the Council that the parade route will begin at Sans Technical
Fiber on Hwy 770, proceed down Main Street, turn onto Stone and Golden Eagle, and end at
Thomas Street near Hundley’s. A motion to approve the ordinance was made by Councilman
Farmer. Seconded by Councilwoman Smith. Motion carried unanimously. Copy incorporated
into minutes.

Town Administrator Report: Town Administrator Michael Sands provided several updates:
online utility bill pay is now operational and receiving positive feedback; leaf collection is



Regular Meeting Minutes November 6, 2025 Page 3

underway on Mondays and Thursdays through December 15 (excluding Thanksgiving week —
Monday and Wednesday); the Town will need to appoint a new representative to the PTRC
Board due to Councilman Farmer’s departure; paving projects on Mebane Street, the post
office parking lot, and surrounding areas are nearing completion; and the Veterans Parade will
be held in downtown Madison on Saturday at 5:30 p.m.

Councilman Farmer offered remarks during his final regular meeting, expressing gratitude to
citizens and councilmembers for the opportunity to serve and encouraglng community
involvement in local government. :

Upcoming meetings and events were announced by Mayor Galvan and she thanked everyone
for coming to the meeting. R

A resident, Ms. Melody Holley, was permitted to speak brlefly out5|de publlc comments to
introduce her Sunshine and Rainbows Inltlatlve and promote the upcomlng Coats and Kindness
Holiday Drive for 2025. Council members offered suggestions and encouraged coordination
with local municipalities and police departments for drop off Iocatlons :

Motion to adjourn made by Councrlman Shelton Seconded by Councnlwoman Smlth Motion
carried unanimously. S 2N

The meeting adjourned at 6:29 p.m.

Mayor,.Kathv"Stahley-tha'lvan TR N Town Clerk, Deleia Hutcherson



Stoneville Town Council
Special Meeting Minutes
November 13, 2025
10:30 AM — Council Chambers

Special Meeting

Present were Mayor Kathy Stanley-Galvan, Council members Johnny Farmer, Curt Bennett, Lee
Shelton, Daisy Smith, and Henry Thornton. Also present were Town Administrator Michael
Sands, Town Clerk Deleia Hutcherson, and Town Attorney Eugene Russell.

Agenda: Mayor Galvan asked for a motion to approve the November 13, 2025, agenda.
Councilman Thornton made a motion to approve the agenda Councﬂwoman Bennett
seconded. Motion carried. :

Special Meeting Item: ; :
Citizen request for investigation of alleged official mlsconduct The Mayor stated that the
special meeting had been properly called by Counmlman Thornton andﬂ;CouncHwoman Smith for
the purpose of addressing a citizen’s request for 'a,n investigation regarding alleged official
misconduct. The Council began by reviewing conCe’rns raised'atthe prior tegular meeting and
noting the importance of ethics, public trust, and aCCO'UntiabiIity among elected officials.

The council members discussed the Codeof Ethics requi‘r"ed:: by the State of North Carolina and
emphasized that council members must uphold i_ntegr»ity, respect, and accountability at all
times—both in their official capacities and in theineréonaI coh‘dUct within the community.
Concerns were raised about how the aIIeged |nc1dent could reflect on the Town Council as a
whole, as negative conduct by any member can lmpact public trust in the governing body.

Several council members noted that addltlonal C|t|zen complaints had surfaced since the
original allegatlon contrlbutmg to the need for cIarlty and transparency. However, they also
stressed that accusatlons made durmg public comments are one-sided and should not be
treated as flndmgs of fact without a falr process

A brief dlscu55|on was held regardlng events at the voting precinct on Election Day. A witness,
Mr. Bennett, prowded limited recol|ect|ons of interactions between individuals present, noting
that he observed no shoutlng match but rather general “bantering.” He stated he had not
witnessed the events that contributed to the complaint in question. Council members
confirmed that the Election Day matter was not the purpose of the special meeting.

Council members expressed a desire to ensure fairness and to avoid prejudging any council
member without credible evidence or proper review. Members discussed whether the council
had authority to take meaningful action in cases involving personal disputes occurring outside
official duties. The town attorney provided guidance on the legal limitations regarding council
authority, noting that conduct unrelated to official duties generally falls outside the council’s
jurisdiction unless it is so outrageous or infamous as to impair the member’s ability to serve.

Councilman Shelton requested to make a voluntary statement. The Town Attorney advised
that Councilman Shelton could voluntarily provide a statement to assist the council in
determining whether an investigation was warranted.



Special Meeting Minutes November 13, 2025 Page 2

Councilman Shelton began by referencing the citizen complaint made by Mr. Mack Rierson,
who did not state a specific council member’s name in his remarks at the prior meeting. After
reviewing the comments made, Councilman Shelton stated the allegations related to his minor
son and constituted a personal matter, not a town-related ethics issue.

He then proceeded to read his prepared statement word-for-word, as follows:

STATEMENT OF COUNCILMAN LEE SHELTON (READ VERBATIM)
“Madam Mayor and members of council,

| have prepared the following statement in response toa complalnt filed against me.

while driving by the complaining person’s house. My sonisnota member of the town council.
And while | dispute that my son has done thls Ido. not believe my son allegedly playing loud
music is an ethics issue or a matter for this council to con5|der, and so | have. nothlng further to
say about the alleged music volume. SRR

| will, however, say that the person cornplain‘ing, who is a gr‘o”Wn man, has himself driven by my
house on multiple occasions and yelled curse words and hateful sIurs at my underage son, as
well as made obscene gestures at him. This person d|d thls not Just from his own car, but also
while driving a work,vehlcle by the. name of the Iocal busmess owner.

The person complalmng, who agaln |s a grown man also sent my underage son text messages
swearing at him, As a concerned parent | found thls conduct from an adult extremely
mapproprlate Slnce the person makmg the complalnt was driving a work vehicle with a

busmess name oniit, | dld call that business to complaln about their employee’s conduct while
driving thelr work vehicle.

| also left a negatlve review online. However reflecting on the situation, | have since taken it
down, as | did not want to blame the business for the improper conduct of a single employee.
When | called the business to gomplain about their employee’s conduct while driving their work
truck, I did not demand that the employee be fired. The only reference | made to town council
was during introductions"oh’*tyhephone when | was asked who | was. At no time did | state or
imply that the matter | was called about related to the town of Stoneville or my role on the
council. | called as a concerned parent, something any other parent would do if their child was
sworn at by an adult.

The person complaining has claimed he requested private mediation with me, but this is not
true. To the best of my knowledge, | have never been contacted by the person complaining or
requesting mediation. Neither me nor my son have received an apology for the harassment and
inappropriate conduct we have received.

| do not believe my conduct is an ethical violation under the rules of North Carolina or the town
of Stoneville. | have not been credibly accused of stealing, bribery, misuse of town property,



Special Meeting Minutes November 13, 2025 Page 3

financial gain, or any other unethical dishonesty. The matter under discussion today all relates
to a personal dispute between the person complaining, my underage son, and me.

| believe investigating a matter such as this as an ethical violation is not within the intent of the
Ethics Code of Conduct and risks opening the door to politicized complaints against myself and
every other member of this council by any stranger who doesn’t like us.

| wish to thank the mayor, the council, and those members of staff that are present for their
time.”

Council members discussed the nature of the dispute and eXﬁressed concern over allowing
personal conflicts between citizens and council members to become council business. Many
emphasized that if the Town Council were to formally mvestrgate every citizen complaint about
a council member unrelated to official dutles the council would be overwhelmed and
distracted from its proper responsibilities. :

N

Members also highlighted the need for council members to rise above personal grievances,
maintain professionalism, and avoid reactmg to personal provocatlons The council generally
agreed that the matter did not involve town business, mlsuse of office, or ethical misconduct on
the part of Councilman Shelton in his capacrty asan elected offrC|aI

Some members encouraged both parties mvolved rn the personal dlspute to seek private
mediation if mutually agreed upon :

After extensive dlscussron the Counc1l reached consensus that the matter constituted a

personal dlspute not an offrcral or ethlcal vrolatlon W|th|n the jurisdiction of the Town Council.

Councrlman Farmer made a motlon stating that, based on the information presented, the
matter was a personal issue and not a council matter, and therefore did not warrant an
investigation by the Town Council. Councrlwoman Smith seconded the motion. Motion carried
unanimously wrth a 4-0 vote. Councdman Shelton recused himself from the vote.

Motion to adjourn made by Counulman Bennett. Councilwoman Smith seconded. Motion
carried. ;

Meeting adjourned at 11:24 a.m.

Mayor, Kathy Stanley-Galvan Town Clerk, Deleia Hutcherson



